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ADDENDUM NO. 3 
 
 
April 4, 2023 
 
Title:  Contract Labor Management Services For Nurse Agency Services 
RFP # H23-0015 
 
 
1. General 

This addendum revises RFP documents.  This addendum is issued to respondents of record prior to 
execution of contract and forms a part of contract documents and modifies previously issued 
documents. Insofar as previously issued contract documents are inconsistent with modifications 
indicated by this addendum, modifications indicated by this addendum shall govern.  Where any part 
of the contract documents are modified by this addendum, all unaltered provisions shall remain in 
effect. 
 

2. Addendum Acknowledgement Form 
Acknowledge receipt of this addendum in the space provided on the Addendum Acknowledgement 
Form.  Proposers must include the signed form with their response.  Failure to do so will subject 
Proposers to disqualification. 
 

3. Changes and Clarifications 
a. RFP # H23-0015 - Proposal due date has been changed from April 7, 2023, to April 19, 2023, by 

2:00 PM, Central 
 
b. Response to questions received. 
 

4. Attachments 
a. Non-Disclosure Agreement  

Proposer(s) may access the following attachments by 1) download and save this Addendum file 
to a local drive and 2) open the Addendum document using Adobe application, 3) expand the 
navigation pane (left of window) and click on the paper-clip icon. 
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Responses to Vendor Questions 
 

 Section of the RFP Question CCHHS Response 

1  
How does the government expect 
exceptions to be submitted? 

Do not understand question 

2  Are redlines to the contract allowed? Yes 

3  Will this be single or multiple award? 
Single Award is contemplated.  CCH 
reserves the right to make multiple 
awards 

4  Are subcontractors allowed? Yes 

5  
Are you selecting the VMS and MSP 
independently? Or are you requiring 
a consolidated offering? 

Requires clarification. 

6 General Question 

Our response team is largely remote. 
Is it acceptable to use electronic 
and/or scanned signatures on 
physically and electronically 
submitted documents? 

It will depend on the type of 
document circumstance and Cook 
County Health Dept. 

7 
Master Services 
Agreement 

Can you provide a list of all the Cook 
County entities covered in this 
agreement? We are specifically 
concerned with any included 
correctional facilities, but a 
comprehensive list will be 
appreciated. 

See Appendix A to this Addendum 1. 
Yes, correctional facilities are 
included. 

8 Financial Status 

It is our policy to require a non-
disclosure agreement be signed 
before providing Audited Financial 
Statements. Will CCH sign an NDA? 

See attached and return NDA 

9 
Reporting and 
Record Keeping 
Requirements: 8ai 

Is there flexibility on this? Industry 
standard for paying agency personnel 
is one week. 

It is up to the selected vendor to 
determine how often they will pay 
their contracted agencies. 

10 General Question 
What does CCH consider to be its top 
three challenges around its clinical 
workforce? 

To be discussed upon contract award. 

11 General Question 
What is CCH’s current permanent 
nurse vacancy rate? 

To be discussed upon contract award. 

12 General Question 

How many temporary contracted 
laborers have CCH converted to 
permanent staff members in the last 
three years? 

To be discussed upon contract award. 

13 General Question 
Does CCH see an opportunity to 
strengthen its internal float program? 

To be discussed upon contract award. 
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 Section of the RFP Question CCHHS Response 

14 General Question 
Does CCH currently recruit local 
clinicians for shiftwork, FMLA leave 
or any additional circumstances? 

To be discussed upon contract award. 

15 General Question 

How many hours of CCH staff time is 
currently consumed in the processes 
of sourcing and managing contract 
labor? 

To be discussed upon contract award. 

16 General Question 
How does CCH handle interviewing 
for candidates? Are unit managers 
involved in the hiring process? 

Depending on the area, the Hiring 
Manager may interview and/or 
recommend an offer based on our 
criteria. 

17 General Question 
Upon receiving a submission, what is 
CCH’s average time to interview a 
candidate? 

24-48 hours of receipt of resume. 

18 General Question 
Which contract positions have been 
most challenging to procure? 

To be discussed upon Contract award. 

19 General Question 
Does CCH currently have a plan in 
place to reduce its reliance upon 
contract labor? 

Yes. 

20 
Key Performance 
Indicators: 9ci, ii, iii 

Is CHS currently receiving and/or 
tracking these KPIs? If yes, can those 
indicators be shared? 

Yes, and they will be defined with the 
selected Proposer.  

21 General Question 

What is the estimated percentage of 
contract labor usage in each CCH 
setting (e.g., hospitals, Renal Dialysis, 
corrections)? What percent of CCH 
contract labor usage is required to 
support the DOC? 

N/A 

22 
Security 
Questionnaire - 
Section D 

How should vendors respond in the 
Information Security Questionnaire - 
Section D if questions are not 
applicable to us? The questionnaire 
provides no obvious mechanism to 
do so. It contains a scoring system in 
which entering the lowest score will 
seemingly count against us and 
entering the highest score seems to 
indicate something is in place even if 
the question is ‘not applicable.' 
Please describe clearly how vendors 
are to respond when questions do 
not apply and are not down-scored 
for it. 

You may enter “Not Applicable” within 
the note field to the specific questions 
that do not apply.   

23 8.3 
Can the Security Questionnaire be 
returned by email vs. hard copy? 

It should be returned as a part of the 
complete package. 



Page 4 of 7 
H23-0015 – Addendum 3 

 Section of the RFP Question CCHHS Response 

24 Cover Page 

If using a courier, the proposer can’t 
control the time of delivery. If the 
response is received the day before 
or outside of the time window on the 
due date, will it be disqualified? 

Proposals are due before the due date 
by 2 pm. 

25 8.3 

Is it acceptable to send the response 
only electronically with separate 
emails for the pricing and technical 
proposals? 

Hard copy as well as E-mail 

26 5.6 
Does the County have a preferred 
pricing format to help with 
comparison among suppliers?  

Proposers may propose it cost format. 

27 5.6 

This section states proposers should 
include reference to the pricing RFP 
see Attachment D. Attachment D is 
the security questionnaire. Is there 
another attachment to reference? 

There is no pricing Attachment. 

28 4 
Can you provide an estimated annual 
volume for the roles included in this 
bid? 

To be discussed upon contract award. 

29 2 
What are the pain points Cook 
County is experiencing with the 
current providers for these roles?   

To be discussed upon contract award. 

30 2 
What is the selection process for this 
bid and what roles are included in the 
selection committee?   

See section 6 of the RFP.  

31 2 

Is this RFP required due to contract 
expiration dates with the current 
provider or is there another business 
reason that the RFP is released at this 
time? 

The current contract is set to expire. 

32 N/A 

If our organization would commit to a 
Service Level Agreement (SLA) with 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) like 
time to fill, would that be of interest 
to Cook County Health? 

This is a requirement in section 8d of 
the RFP. 

33 N/A 

What are the most important 
outcomes of the RFP?  Rate 
reductions, speeding up your time to 
fill, etc.? 

At a minimum it should meet the 
objectives described in section 2.a and 
also meet the minimum requirements 
outlined in the KPI’s found in Section 
5.4. 
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 Section of the RFP Question CCHHS Response 

34 N/A 

Does Cook County prefer a managed 
services provider that is “vendor 
neutral” and doesn’t have a vested 
interest in prioritizing their own staff 
over the rest of the talent in the 
market? 

CCH is open all approaches. 

35 N/A 
Can you provide the decision making 
process? 

See Response to question 30. 

36 
PAGE 6 OF 20 
License, Permits and 
Qualifications 

Kindly confirm, do we have to 
provide resumes of key personnel in 
the RFP response? 

Yes, for the firm that will providing 
services. 

37  
Is this a new initiative? If not, please 
provide the names of the current 
vendor(s) providing the services. 

No. Vaya Workforce Solutions, LLC 

38  
Can you please let us know the 
previous spending of this contract? 

To be discussed upon contract award. 

39  
Please confirm if we can get the 
proposals or pricing of the 
incumbent(s). 

A request may be made via the 
Freedom of Information Act request. 

40  
Are there any pain points or issues 
with the current vendor(s)? 

No.  

41  
Please confirm the anticipated 
number of awards. 

See response to question 3. 
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Appendix A CCH Locations 
CCH Facilities  
 

Name Address City State Zip 

John H. Stroger, Jr Hospital 1969 W. Ogden Avenue Chicago IL 60612 

Provident Hospital 500 E. 51st Street Chicago IL 60615 

Cermak 2800 S. California Avenue Chicago IL 60608 

Juvenile Temporary Detention 
Center 

1100 S. Hamilton Avenue Chicago IL 60612 

Ambulatory & Community 
Health Network (ACHN)  
Stroger Specialty Care Clinics 

John H. Stroger, Jr Hospital  
1969 W. Ogden Avenue 

Chicago IL 60612 

Ambulatory & Community 
Health Network (ACHN)  
Stroger Specialty Care Clinics 

Professional Building  
1950 W. Polk Street 

Chicago IL 60612 

John Sengstacke Health Center 
of Cook County 
Primary Care and Specialty at 
Provident Hospital 

500 E. 51st Street Chicago IL 60615 

Arlington Heights Health 
Center of Cook County 

3250 N. Arlington 
Heights Road, Suite 300 

Arlington Heights IL 60004 

Austin Health Center of Cook 
County 

4800 W. Chicago Avenue Chicago  IL 60651 

Blue Island Health Center of 
Cook County - Primary Care 
and Specialty 

12757 S. Western Avenue Blue Island IL 60406 

Children's Advocacy Center of 
Cook County 

1240 S. Damen Avenue Chicago IL 60608 

Cicero Health Center of Cook 
County 

5912 W. Cermak Road Cicero IL 60804 

Cottage Grove Health Center of 
Cook County 

1645 Cottage Grove Avenue Ford Heights IL 60411 

Englewood Health Center of 
Cook County 

1135 W. 69th Street Chicago IL 60621 

Logan Square Health Center of 
Cook County 

2840 W. Fullerton Avenue Chicago  IL 60647 

Morton East Adolescent Health 
Center of Cook County 

2423 S. Austin Boulevard Cicero IL 60804 

Near South Health Center of 
Cook County 

3525 S. Michigan Avenue Chicago IL 60653 

North Riverside Health Center 
of Cook County 

1800 S. Harlem Avenue North Riverside IL 60546 
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ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 
 
As required by the RFP, Proposers must submit this acknowledgement form with their response. One 
acknowledgement form per response, listing all addenda, is appropriate. 
 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
 
 
Company Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Representative’s Name: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date:  ______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
END OF ADDENDUM 





MUTUAL NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 


THIS MUTUAL NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into 


as of the ___ day of _________, by and between the County of Cook (the “County”) a body politic and 


corporate of the State of Illinois, through its Cook County Health & Hospitals System d/b/a Cook County 


Health (“CCH”), and _______________, with its principal place of business at 


_________________________ (“Proposer”).  


 


WHEREAS, one or both of the parties to this Agreement have developed or acquired Confidential 


Information Pursuant to RFP, # H23-0015, Contract Labor Management Services for Nurse 


Agency Services (as defined below) and the parties wish to ensure that such information is treated in 


strictest confidence; and 


WHEREAS, each of the parties wishes to exchange Confidential Information for the purpose of 


discussing and evaluating the suitability of a potential business relationship and/or negotiating and/or entering 


into such a relationship (the “Purpose”). 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants provided herein the parties agree as follows: 


CCH and Proposer are willing to disclose such information to each other under the following 


conditions:  


1. Except as set out in Section 2, Confidential Information means all non-public, confidential or 


proprietary information that is disclosed by one party (“Disclosing Party”) or its  commissioners, directors, 


officers, employees, agents, consultants, advisors or other representatives, including legal counsel, accountant 


and financial advisor (collectively, “Representatives”) to the other party (“Receiving Party”) or its 


Representatives, whether supplied in oral, written, graphic, photographic, recorded, prototype, sample or any 


other for, and whether or not marked or otherwise identified as “confidential”, including, without limitation: 


(a) trade secrets, product specifications, pricing, data, know-how, formulae, compositions, 


processes, designs, sketches, photographs, graphs, drawings, algorithms, samples, technical 


information, economic information, inventions and ideas whether tangible or intangible, past, current, 


and planned research and development and related strategies, market studies, computer software and 


programs (including object code and source code), computer software and database technologies, 


systems, structures and architectures (and related processes, formulae, composition, improvements, 


devices, inventions, discoveries, concepts, ideas, designs, methods and information);  


 


(b) information concerning the Disclosing Party’s and its affiliates’, and their customers’, 


members’, suppliers’, providers’ and other third parties’ past, present and future business affairs, 


including, without limitation, finances, customer or member information, supplier or provider 


information, products, services, organizational structure and internal practices (including personnel 


training techniques and materials), forecasts, sales and other financial results, records and budgets, 


and business, marketing, development, sales, manufacturing or distribution, and other commercial 


strategies, proposals, pricing, contracts and negotiation strategies; 


 


(c) health plan members, patients, physicians, providers, provider groups, employees, 


vendors, business plans and marketing; and 


 


(d) all notes, analyses, compilations, studies, summaries and other material prepared by 


Receiving Party or its Representatives containing or based, in whole or in part, upon any information 


as may be disclosed to Receiving Party by Disclosing Party or its Representatives; and 
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(e) the existence, context and scope of this Agreement, the fact that discussions or 


negotiations are taking place concerning the Purpose, and the proposed terms and conditions of any 


follow-on agreement in furtherance of the Purpose (“Definitive Agreement”). 


 


2. Notwithstanding the above, such information shall not be considered Confidential 


Information if (a) it can be shown by Receiving Party to have been in its possession prior to its disclosure by 


Disclosing Party pursuant to this Agreement; (b) at the time of disclosure hereunder is, or thereafter becomes, 


through no fault of Receiving Party or its Representatives, part of the public domain by publication or 


otherwise; (c) is furnished to Receiving Party by a third party after the time of disclosure hereunder as a matter 


of right and without restriction on its disclosure; (d) it is independently developed by employees or agents of 


Receiving Party without reference to the Confidential Information received from Disclosing Party or its 


Representatives; or (e) it is disclosed to a third party with the written approval of Disclosing Party.   


 


3. Receiving Party agrees to, and shall cause its Representatives to: (a) maintain in confidence 


and not disclose in any manner whatsoever, in whole or in part, any such Confidential Information, except in 


accordance with this Agreement; and (b) limit its use of any such Confidential Information for the Purpose, 


and for no other purpose unless the parties shall otherwise agree in writing. 


  


4.  Receiving Party shall: (a) disclose any Confidential Information only to those of its 


Representatives who are: (i) actively and directly participating in Receiving Party’s evaluation of the Purpose 


or otherwise need to know the Confidential Information to evaluate the Purpose; and (ii) informed of the terms 


and conditions of this Agreement and are subject to obligations (contractual, legal or fiduciary) to maintain 


the confidentiality of such Confidential Information that are no less restrictive than the terms and conditions 


of this Agreement; and (b) protect and safeguard the confidentiality of all such Confidential Information from 


unauthorized use and disclosure with at least the same degree of care as it would protect its own Confidential 


Information, but in no event with less than a commercially reasonable degree of care. Receiving Party shall 


be responsible for any disclosure or use of Confidential Information which, if done by Receiving Party itself, 


would be a breach of this Agreement.  


 


5. Should the parties enter into a Definitive Agreement, it is understood that the terms and 


conditions of this Agreement shall be incorporated into such agreement unless otherwise set forth in writing 


therein.  To the extent required, additional protections may be agreed upon at a later date. Notwithstanding 


the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement requires either party to enter into a transaction or to negotiate such 


Definitive Agreement for any specified period of time.  


 


6. In the event that Receiving Party or any of its Representatives is required (by oral questions, 


interrogatories, requests for information or documents in legal proceedings, subpoena, civil investigative 


demand or other similar process, or the rules or regulations of any regulatory authority having jurisdiction 


over Receiving Party or its Representatives or a stock exchange on which Receiving Party’s securities are 


traded) to disclose any Confidential Information of Disclosing  Party, it shall (to the extent legally possible 


and practicable) provide prompt written notice to Disclosing Party of such receipt, together with a copy of the 


request, subpoena or process.   Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other remedy and/or waive 


compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  If, in the absence of a protective order or other remedy or 


the receipt by Receiving Party of a waiver from Disclosing Party or to the extent such notice is not legally 


possible or practicable, Receiving Party or any of its Representatives is nonetheless legally required to disclose 


Confidential Information to any tribunal or other person, Receiving Party or such Representative agrees to 


exercise all reasonable efforts to obtain confidential treatment for such Confidential Information and may, 


without liability hereunder, disclose to such tribunal or other entity that portion of the Confidential Information 


which is legally required to be disclosed. If disclosure is required pursuant to the Illinois Freedom of 


Information Act (“FOIA”) [5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.], the following also applies: 
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The Parties acknowledge and agree that CCH, as part of a public body, is required to comply with FOIA. CCH 


will have the right to determine, upon receipt of a FOIA request, whether CCH will or will not withhold 


information in response to the FOIA request. Except that, Proposer may reasonably designate, in writing to 


CCH, by clearly marking as “Confidential and proprietary” or Confidential, proprietary and privileged”  


information that Proposer furnishes or makes available to CCH pursuant to this Agreement that Proposer is 


able to justify as confidential and proprietary and qualified to be exempt from disclosure in response to a 


FOIA request. If Proposer makes such a reasonable designation, CCH will notify Proposer of an applicable 


FOIA request and provide Proposer the opportunity to assert that information is exempt from public inspection 


and copying under FOIA (5 ILCS 140 et seq.). CCH may require Proposer to submit written justification for 


asserting the exemption. To the extent CCH is assessed attorneys’ fees or court costs or penalties as a result 


of assisting Proposer in asserting an exemption from FOIA disclosure, Proposer will indemnify and hold 


harmless CCH from and against such expenses. Proposer’s failure to clearly designate as “Confidential and 


Proprietary” and therefore exempt in accordance with this Section any information Proposer furnishes or 


makes available to CCH pursuant to this Agreement and that CCH discloses in response to a FOIA request, 


will constitute Proposer’s waiver against CCH of any and all claims for damages or other relief with respect 


to such FOIA disclosure.  


  


7. At any time during or after the term of this Agreement, at Disclosing Party’s written request,  


Receiving Party and its Representatives shall promptly return to Disclosing Party all copies, whether in 


written, electronic or other form or media, of Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information, or destroy all such 


copies and certify in writing to Disclosing Party that such Confidential Information has been destroyed. 


Notwithstanding the foregoing, Receiving Party may retain any copy of Confidential Information, regardless 


of whether its is in original form: (a) as may be required to comply with Receiving Party’s internal record-


keeping policies or any applicable federal, state or local law, regulation or regulatory authority to which it is 


subject; or (b) that is maintained as an archive copy on Receiving Party’s disaster recovery and/or information 


technology backup systems. Such copy will be destroyed on the normal expiration of Receiving Party’s 


backup files. Receiving Party shall continue to be bound by the confidentiality restrictions of this Agreement 


regarding any such Confidential Information retained in accordance with this Section. 


 


8. Each party hereby retains its entire right, title and interest, including intellectual property 


rights, in and to all of its Confidential Information. Neither Disclosing Party nor any of its Representatives (a) 


make any representation or warranty, expressed or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the 


Confidential Information disclosed to Receiving Party hereunder; or (b) shall be liable to Receiving Party or 


any of its Representatives relating to or resulting from Receiving Party’s or its Representative’s use of any of 


the Confidential Information or any errors therein or omissions therefrom.  


 


9. Each party agrees that money damages might not be a sufficient remedy for any breach of 


this Agreement by that party or its Representatives, and that the other party and its Representatives shall be 


entitled to seek specific performance and/or injunctive relief (and the parties hereby waive any requirement 


for the securing or posting of any bond or the showing of actual monetary damages in connection with such 


claim), in addition to all other remedies available at law or in equity in the event of such breach.  No failure 


by a party in exercising any right under this Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single 


or partial exercise thereof preclude the exercise of any further rights under this Agreement. 


 


10. All notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers and other communications 


hereunder shall be in writing and addressed to the parties at the addresses set forth in this Agreement (or to 


such other address that may be designated by the receiving party from time to time in writing). All notices 


shall be delivered by personal delivery, nationally recognized overnight courier (with all fees pre-paid), 


facsimile or e-mail (with confirmation of transmission) or certified or registered mail (in each case, return 


receipt requested, postage pre-paid). Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a notice is effective 
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only (a) upon receipt by the receiving party, and (b) if the party giving the notice has complied with the 


requirements of this Section. 


11. This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire agreement of the parties with respect to the 


subject matter contained herein, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings, agreements, 


representations and warranties, both written and oral, with respect to such subject matter. If any term or 


provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality 


or unenforceability shall not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render 


unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction.  


 


12. This Agreement may be modified or waived only by a separate writing signed by the parties 


expressly modifying or waiving this Agreement. 


 


13. This Agreement is for the benefit of the Parties and may not be assigned by either party 


without the other party’s prior written consent. 


 


14.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State 


of Illinois without regard to its conflict of laws provisions. Any action, suit or other legal proceeding relating 


to this Agreement shall be commenced and prosecuted only in an appropriate court located in Cook County, 


Illinois. 


 


15. This is for the sole purpose of protecting Confidential Information. Neither party shall obtain 


any rights or be under any obligation to enter into any transaction or any further agreement with or give any 


compensation to any other party. In addition, neither party shall be obligated by this Agreement to supply 


Confidential Information to the other party. 


 


16.  The term of this Agreement shall expire on the second anniversary. The obligations of each 


Recipient under this Agreement shall survive any termination of this Agreement for one (1) year, except that 


any and all confidentiality obligations for trade secrets shall remain in effect for as long as the trade secret 


remains a trade secret under applicable law. 


 


17.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed 


to be an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute 


one and the same instrument. 


 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the last day and year 


written below. 


 


 


 


Cook County Health & Hospitals System 


d/b/a Cook County Health  [PROPOSER] 


 


 


By:  ______________________________   By: ______________________________ 


 


Name: Israel Rocha, Jr.________________   Name: ____________________________ 


 


Title: Chief Executive Officer_____    Title:______________________________ 


 


Address: 1950 W. Polk, Ste. 9800, Chicago, IL _____  Address: __________________________ 
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Date: ______________________________   Date: _____________________________ 





